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Mr. Michael Beesley

President
King America Finishing. Inc.
Georgia Highway 17
Dover, GA 30424
(912) 8634511

August 5 2011

Y CE RTIFIED MAIL - RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Re: 60-Day Notice of Violations and Intent to File Citizen Suit under Section 505 of the
Clean Water Act

Dear Mr, Beasley,

The Ogeechee-Canoochee Rlvarkeeper, Inc., djh/a Ogeechee Riverkeepar, Inc (hereafter
uogeechee Riverkeeper"), In accordance with Section 505 of the Clean Water Act (the 'Act or the "CWA"),
33 U.S.C. § 1365, and 40 C.1.R. Part 135, hereby notifies you that King America Finishing, Inc. Is in
violation of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1251 at seq., as a result of the ongoing unpermItted
discharges from Its textile facIlIty, which Is operating under National Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System ('NPDiS') permit number 0A0003280, in Screven County, Georgia. As described more fully
below. King America Finishing, Inc. (hereafter "King") Is discharging color, ammonia and formaldehyde In
violation of Its permit and Georgia water quality standards, In addition, King's discharges are In violation
of state water quality and numeric permit limits for pH.

This letter constitutes a Notice of Violations and Intent to File Suit ("Notice Letter") under Section
505(b) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1365(b), if within sixty days of the postmark of this letter King does not
bring its discharges Into full compliance with the Act Ogoachee Riverkeeper intends to file a citizen suit
In the United Staves District Court against King for ongoing violations of an "effluent standard or
limitation" within the meaning of Clean Water Act Section 505 [a) (1) (A), (t), 33 U.S.C. t 365(a) (1)(A), (t),
seeking civil penalties for King's ongoing violations and an injunction compelling King to comply with the
Act.
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Ogeechee Riverkeeper is a 501(c)(3) non-pro.ft organization with over 1,000 members, Including
people who use the river for fishing and recreation, Ogeechee Riverkeeper's mission is to protect,
preserve and Improve the water quality of the Ogeechee River basin. The activities at this site have
negatively impacted the Ogeechee River by injuring and killing aquatic species, harming fish hahitati
endangering public health and discouraging recreational use of the rivers.

THE CLEAN WATER ACT

Section 30i(a) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311(a), prohibits any "discharge of any
pollutant" by any person, except as in compliance with sections 302, 306, 307, 318, 402 and 404 of the
Act. CWA section 502(12) defines the term "discharge or a pollutant" to mean "any addition of any
pollutant to navigable waters from any point source," 33 U.S.C. § 1362(12). Section 502(6) of the Act
defines "pollutant" to mean "dredged spoil, solid waste, incinerator residue, sewage, garbage, sewage
sludge, munitions, chemical wastes, biological materials, radioactive materials, heat, wrecked or
discarded equipment, rock, sand, cellar dirt, and industrial, municipal, and agricultural waste discharged
Into water," Id, § 1362(6); 40 C.I.R. § 122.2. CWA section 502(14) defines the term "point source" to
include, Inter alto, "any pipe... from which pollutants are or may be discharged." 33 U.S.C. § 136Z(14),

GEORGIA'S DELEGATED PROGRAM

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) has authorized Georgia to issue NPDES permits
under the Georgia Pollution Discharge Elimination System program. Pursuant to this delegation, the State
of Georgia's Environmental Protection Division Issued Permit No. GA0003280 to King America ininishtng,
Inc. This permit allows King to discharge into the Ogeechee River in Screven County at Outfall 001
contingent upon King's compliance with discharge limitations specified in the permit, with federal water
quality standards codified at CWA § 307(a), 33 U.S.C. § '1317(a), and with state water quality standards
codified at Ca. Camp. R. & Rags. r, 391-3-6-.03(5).

NPDES PERMIT REQUIREMENTS

Section 402 of the Clean Water Act requires that an NPDES permit ensure compliance with all
CWA requirements applicable to the discharge being permitted. See 33 U.S.C, § 1342, NPDES permits have
several general types of provisions, Including technology-based effluent limitations and state water
quality-based effluent Iimitations, along with monitoring and reporting requirements.
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Technology-based limitations are limitations on the discharge of pollutants based on the
availability and cost of pllutlon control technology, which EPA has established for many industries Since
EPA has promulgated a guideline applicable to the woven fabric finishing Industry group, the industry to
which King's facility belongs, see 40 C.P.R. 69 410.40—.47, these effluent limitations are also required to be
Incorporated into King's NPDES permit. CWA § 301(b), 33 U.S.C. § 1311(b); see 40 C.F.R. § 1Z5..

Water quality-based effluent limitations are developed to achieve compliance with established
water quality standards, and are included in NPDES permits if technology-based limitations alone are not
sufficient to ensure compliance with applicable water quality standards. CWA ff 301(b)(1)(C), 302(a),
303(e)(3)(A), 33 U.S.C. 95 1311(b)(1)(C), 1312(a), 1313(e)(3)(A) 40 C.F.R. § 122.44(d). The purpose of a
water quality standard, as defined in CWA section 101(a)(2), Is to ensure that wherever attainable, water
quality provides for the protection and propagation of fish, shellfish, and wildlife, and provides for
recreation In and on the water. CWA § 101(n)(2), 33 U.S.C. § 1251(a) (2). CWA section 303(c)(2) further
provides that water quality standards shall be established for waters taking Into consideration their use
and value for public water supplies; propagation of fish and wildlife; and recreational purposes, among
other uses. CWA 303(c)(2)(A), 33 U.S.C. § 1313(c)(2)(A). This section directs each state to consider all
of the uses enumerated therein when establishing state water quality standards. Sections 301(b)()(C)
and 303(e)(3)(A) of the CWA require that all N?DES permits include limitations as necessary to comply
with water quality standards developed by the states. CWA § 301(b)(1)(C), 303(e)(3)(A), 33 !J.S.0 §
1311(b)(1)(C), 1313(e)(3)(A).

STANDARDS APPLICABLE TO KING'S NPDES PERMIT

King's permit, which, based on Information and belief, is still In effect, contains the following
permit lirnfts

Numeric effluent discharge limitations for Flow, Biochemical Oxygen Demand (BODs), Chemical
Oxygen Demand (COD), Total Suspended Solids (TSS), Sulfide, Total Phenols, Total Chromium
Dissolved Oxygen and pH;
Effluent standards or prohibitions for toxic priority pollutants that are applicable to all sources
(Incorporated Into the permit by reference to section 307(a) of the CWA in the permit);
EPA's performance standards for members of the Woven Fabric Finishing industry, at 40 C,P.R. §
41041, 410.42 (incorporated into the permit by reference to section 307(a) of the CWA in the
permit),
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• Effluent standards or prohibitions mandated by state water quality standards (Incorporated Into
the permit by reference to Ga. Comp. R. & Regs. r, 391-3 .603(5) in the permit).

in addition, the permit states that the permitteB may not discharge toxic pollutants In concentrations or
combinations that are harmful to humans, animals, or aquatic life."

KING'S VIOLATIONS

King is in violation of the Clean Water Act by discharging color in violation of state water quality
standards.

Flrsi, King is In violation of state narrative water quality standards duo to its Illegal discharges of
color. Georgia's state water quality standards require that "fall) waters shall be free from material related
to municipal, industrial or other discharges which produce turbidity, color, odor or other objectionable
conditions which interfere with legitimate water uses." Ga. Comp R, & Regs. r. 391-3-6-.O(5)(c). Georgia
courts have hold chat discharges by facilities that discolor a river so as to interfere with legitimate
aesthetic uses ot'the water are in violation of the Georgia Rules' proscription of discharge which produces
discoloration, and therefore, also Is in violation of the Clean Water Act. See, e.g., Culbertson 'i'. Coats Am.,
913 F, Supp. 1572, 1581-132 (N.D. Ga. 199) (finding defendant fable under the CWA for violation of state
water quality standards based on evidence of discharges causing discoloration in Eastanoflee Creek).

King has a Long history of discharges of color from its facility in violation of the State water quality
standard that bars discharges "which produce... color.., which interfere(s) with legitimate water uses."
Ga, Comp, R. & Regs. r. 391-3-6-.03(5)(c), The Ogeechee River has been designated as a fishing river by
the State of Georgia, which affords it certain additional protections under the law, Id at r. 391.-3-6-
.03(6)(c), (14). Despite this fact, Kings facUlty continues to discharge color from Its outfall pipe Into the
River, generating numerous complaints from those fishing and utilizing the Ogeechee for recreation.

While there is no numeric limitation In KIngs permit for Color discharges, King Is required to
monitor its color output in its NPDES permit in addition, all color discharges are required to complywith
state water quality standards. The EPA, In Its regulations for non-priority pollutants, recommends that
waters should be virtually free from substances producing objectionable color for aesthetic purposes,
noting that color "should not exceed 75 color units on the platinum-cobalt scale for domestic water
supplies." Sec 63 Fed, Reg. 6,354 (Dec 10, 1998),1

This Federal Register Noticecitescolor as a non-priority pollutant, and refers to the "Red Book," which Is officially titled "Quality
Criteria for Water," EPA Pubilcatron No, 440/9-76 .023 (JUIY 1575).

4
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There were numerous accounts of very high color discharges from King's facility on the Ogeechee
River in 2007 and 2009. On June 4-5 2007, HPD did sampling of the discharges from King's pipe into the
Ogeechee River, and round color tested at 1,200 on the platinum-cobalt scale; this high color discharge is
also reflected In Ring's Discharge Monitoring Re port (DMR) for June 2007. (See Attachments A and H.) On

July 30, 2007, there were numerous complaints concerning disturbing color discharges from the facility,
Including a phone call complaining about discolored water front King's pipe and another phoned-in
complaint describing an 'extremely black plume of water' and a "strong ado? at the pipe. (See

Attachments C and D.) There were additional reports of color violations on August 4, 2007, based on
photographs taken by Ogeechee Riverkeeper staff. (See Lotter to EPD from Ogeechee Riverkoepor dated
Dec. L 2007, as Attachment E.) On Dec. 17, 2007, Ogeechac Riverkeeper conducted additional testing and
found color discharges of 80, 90 and 100 on the platinum-cobalt scale. (See Attachment F.) The following
summer, on July 8, 2008, Ogeechee Riverkeeper conducted sampling and found color discharges at 250
on the platinum-cobalt scale. (See Attachment G.)

Over the past two years, King has continued to discharge color in violation of state Water quality
standards. King discharged 350 color units in April 2009, (See Attachment H) King's color discharge was
300 color units in October 2009, and again in January 2010. (See Attachment I.) Ring discharged 100
color units In August and December of 2009, as well as in June, July, September, October, November and
December of 2010, and 150 color units in September and November of 2009 and August of 2010, (See
Attachments I and J.) its color discharge was 200 in May and June of 2009, as well as in March, April and
May of 2010. See Attachments I and J) These violations have continued into 2011. In January and
February of 2011, King reported color of 100 at Its outfall. (See Attachments K and L) In March of 2011,
color was again reported by King to be at 200.r.olor units. (See Attachment M,)

In late May of 2011, reports of a fish kill on the Ogeechee River began to emerge, with King's
facility appearing to be located at or near the source of the harm to aquatic species. (See Attachment N,
press releases from EPD concerning fish kill.) Based on information and beUef, these ongoing unlawful
discharges are resulting In discoloration in violation of state water quality standards, and therefore
constitute a violation of the Clean Water Act,

King Is in violation of state water quality standards due to Illegal discharges of ammonia.

State water quality rules also mandate that "[a]Il waters shall be free from toxic, corrosive, acidic
and caustic substances discharged from municipalities, Industries or other sources, such as nonpoint
sources, in amounts, concentrations or combinations which are harmful to humans, animals or aquatic
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life," Ga. Comp. It & Regs. r. 91-36-.03(5)(e). eased on information and belief, King's past and ongoing
discharges of ammonia are Illegal, and are harrn1.il to humans, animals and aquatic life, In violation of this
water quality standard.

Ammonia is considered one of the most Important pollutants in the aquatic environment due to its
highly toxic nature, its ubiquity in surface water systems, and the fact that many effluents require
extensive treatment in order to keep ammonia concentrations at acceptabic limits, 2 (The chemical form
of ammonia In water consists of two species, the amiionium ion and the ammonia molecule; we use
ammonia to refer to both, butspecify when sampling refers to one or the other.)

On August 4, 2007, Ogeechec fliverkeeper conducted sampling on the Ogeechee River at King's
facility avid found extremely high ammonium Ion levels ranging From 12.56 mg/L to 18.51 mg/L. (See

Attachment E, Ogeechee Rlverkeeper letter to EPLI dated Dec. 5, 2007.) The letter also notes that
nitrogen levels in excess of 1.0 nig/L are known to cause nuisance algae blooms and load to
eutrophication.

On May 22-23, 2011, sampling was conducted by the EPA at King's facility as part of EPA's
investigation of the fish kill on the Ogeechee River, and ammonia was again in excess of 1,0 mg/L, The
ammonia molecule sampled at King's facility (reported as 5Th #4) was 1.2 mg/L, compared to levels
ranging from 0.046 to 0.19 above and below King's pipe. (See Attachment 0, EPA sampling data.)
Similarly, ammonium Ion at the facility was 1.4 mg/L, compared to levels ranging from 0,05 to 0.24
taken from surrounding areas of the River. On July 5, 2011, Ogaechee Rivet-keeper conducted its own
sampling at King's discharge pipe, and found 1.5 mg/L of ammonia at the discharge. (See Attachment P,
at page 3.) Based on information and belief, King is continuing to discharge ammonia in violation of state
water quality standards, which Constitutes a discharge i.n. vlolation of its NPDES permit.

King Is in violation of state water quality standards due to illegal discharges of formaldehyde.

According to King's NPDES permit application, King is discharging formaldehyde from Its facility
Into the Ogeechea River, (See Attachment Q, King's NPDES permit application.) King's ongoing discharge
of formaldehyde is in violation of state water quality standards mandating that all waters be "free from
toxic, corrosive, acidic and caustic substances discharged from municipalities, industries or other

2 U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 2009. Draft 2009 Update Aquatic Life Amleflt Witer Quailty Criteria for Ammonia -
Freshwater. Document No, EPA-922-13-09-00.1. P. '.
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sources, such as nonpoint sources, in amounts, concentrations or combinations which are harmful to
humans, animals or aquatic life," Ga. Comp. R. & Regs. r. 391-3-6 .03(5)(e).

There is clear evidence that formaldehyde is a caustic substance that is harmful to humans, The
EPA, In its memo discussing the May 2011 fish kill on the Ogeechee River, states that formaldehyde Is a
"skin, eye and respiratory irritant." (Sae Attachment R.) Perhaps more concerning, in 2011, formaldehyde
was elevated from a substance "reasonably anticipated to be a human carcinogen" to a substance that is
"known to be a human carcinogen" by the National Toxicology Program, which was commissioned by the
U.S. Department of Health and Human Serv1ces.9

EPA's sampling of the Ogeechee River on May 22-23, 2011, in addition to testing for ammonia, also
Included tests fur formaldehyde above, helow and at King's discharge pipe. BPA's results show startlingly
high levels of formaldehyde at King's facility (reported as STA #4) compared to the sampling stations
upriver and downriver. At King's pipe, discharges of formaldehyde were reported to be 400 micrograms
per liter, compared to the other stations, which had undetectable limits of formaldehyde (meaning those
samples contained 5 micrograms or less). (See Attachment 0, 1 PA's sampling data.)

Ogeechee Rlverkeeper conducted Its own testing for formaldehyde on July S, 2011, and found
significant levels of formaldehyde at the discharge pipe (720 micrograms per liter), while In contrast,
both above and below King's facility, samples taken were below the reporting limit for formaldehyde.
(See Attachment P.) Based on information and belief, King is continuing to discharge formaldehyde in
violation of state water quality standards, which constitutes a discharge in violation of its NP3 BS permit,

King is its violation of the Clean Water Act by discharging in violation of numeric state water
quality standards and permit limitations set for pH.

King's discharges are resulting In violations of both state water quality limits and permit limits for
pH. King's permit states that pH must be between 6.0 and 9.0 standard units. In addition, the permit
states that the permittee must comply with chapter S91-3-6-.O3('a') of the State Rules and "may not
discharge toxic pollutants in concentrations or combinations that are harmful to humans, animals, or
aquatic life." These State Rules mandate that "[a]Il waters shall be free from material related to municipal,
industrial or other discharges which produce... objectionable conditions which Interfere with legitimate
water uses;' Ga. Comp. R, & Regs. r. 3g1-3-6-.O3(5)(0), Under Georgia's state water quality regulations, pH
must be within the range of 6.0 and 8.5 pH for rivers that have a designated water use of fishing. Ga.

'$e National Toxicology Program, U.5. Dep't of Health and Human Services. 2011.12'' Report on Carcinogens. Available at
htkn:Nntn nlehs.nlh,eovtroc12/iNDEXCSF2.HTM,
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Camp. R. & Rags. r. 391 .643(6)(c)(U). The Ogeechee River is listed under this designation as a fishing
river, Ga. Comp. R. & Regs. r. 391-3-6-.03(14).

Thus, under Its permit, pH over B.5 Is in violation of state water quality standards incorporated by
reference Into its permit, and pH over 9.0 is in violation of numeric limits directly mandated by the
permit. Despite these restrictions, King has consistently discharged In violation of the pH limits set forth
above. According to King's DMR Summary for 2010, p1-1 at King's discharge pipe exceeded a maximum of
8.5 standard units In the following months: January (900 std. units); February (8.85 std. units); March
(900 std. units); April (8.07 std. units); May (0.99 std. units); June (9i8 std. units); September (8.57 std,

units); October (9.00 std. units); November (9.00 std. units); and December (8.99 std. units). (See
Attachment).) These violations have continued into 2011. In January of 2011, King reported a maximum
pH of 9.8 standard units. (See Attachment S.) The following month, maximum ph was 95 (See
Attachment T.) In March, April and May, maximum p1-1 was 9.00, 8.93, and 8.98 respectively. (See DMRs
for Mai, Apr. and May 2011, Attachments U, V and W.) Based upon information and belief; King continues
to discharge in violation of its permit limits and state water quality standards for pH.

King America Finishing, Inc.'s repeated practice of violating state Water quality standards due to
illegal discharges of color, ammonia and formaldehyde, in addition to violations of pH limits set by state
water quality standards and King's permit, raises a good faith belief that such violations of its permit
conditions are ongoing and continuing through today, and that it will continue In the future unless

enjoined by a court of law,

CIVIL PENALTIES AND OTHER RELIEF

Pursuant to Section 309(d) of the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(d), and the Adjustment of Civil

Monetary Penalties for inflation, 40 C.F.R. § 19,4, ascIi sepurate violation of the Clean Water Act subjects
the violator to a penalty of up to $37,00 per day for violations occurring after January 12, 2009,
Ogeechee Riverkeeper Intends to seek an assessment of civil penalties as well as injunctive relief to
prevent future violations, see CWA Section 50(a), 33 U.S.C. § 1365(a), litigation costs including attorney
and expert witness fees, CWA Section 50(d), 33 U.S.C. § 1365(d), and such other relief as permitted by

law.
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CONTACT INFORMATION

The name, address and telephone number of the person giving notice pursuant to this Notice Letter is

Ms, Dianna Wedincatnp, Riverkeeper
Ogeechee Riverkeeper, Inc., P.O. Box 1925, Statesboro, Georgia, 30459.
Phone: (866)942-6222.

Please address all communications regarding this Notice Letter to Ogeechee Riverkeeper, Inc.

CONCLUSION

Upon expiration of the 60-day notice period, Ogeechee Riverkeeper, Inc. intends to file a citizen
enforcement action pursuant to Section 5O i(a) of the Clean Water Act for the above violations. Given
King America Finishing, Inc.'s ongoing discharges in violation of the Act, Ogeechee Riverkeeper reserves
the right to add additional claims based on the same or similar violations upon determining that such
claims exist based on information made available after the service of this Notice Letter.

Sincerely,	 r

JC8/(LT72
Ms, Dianna Wedincamp

cc.	 Registered Agent, King America Finishing, Inc.
C,T, Corporation System
1201 Peachtree Street, NE

Atlanta, GA 30361
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Ms. £sa Jackson
Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Arial. Rios Building
1200 Pennsylvania Avenue, N,W.
Washington, D.C. 20460

Ms. Gwendolyn Keyes Fleming
Regional Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency Region 4
Sam Nunn Atlanta Federal Center
61 Forsyth Street, SW
Atlanta, GA 30303

Mr. Allen Barnes
Director
Georgia environmental Protection Division
2 Martin Luther King Jr. Drive
Suite 1152, Fast Tower
Atlanta, GA 30334

Mr. Daniel B ischoff
President
Westex, Inc.
2845 West 4Bth Place
Chicago, U 60632

Mr, Joseph G. Kusper
Registered Agent, Westex, lb u,

9501 West Devon Avenue, 0th Floor
Rosemont, IL 60018

PD Box 1925
Statesboro, OA 3459

PheofFax: 965942.6222
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